












FOR ITEM NO. 5 

PLEASE SEE ITEM NO. 7 A 



FOR ITEM NO. 6 

PLEASE SEE ITEM NO. 7 A 



ITEM NO. 7A 

March 14, 2019 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Minutes of the February 14, 2019 Regular City Council Meetings 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council: 
• Approve the minutes as submitted.

BACKGROUND 

Staff has prepared minutes for the following meetings: 

• February 14, 2019

Staff hereby submits the minutes for Council's approval. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachment(s): 
1. Minutes for February 14, 2019

Report Submitted By: Janet Martinez, City Clerk Date of Report: March 7, 2019 























ITEM NO. 78 
.,��

"'t,ft:SPH/Nos<>�City of Santa Fe Springs
"' � 

� \ City Council Meeting 
u 

<,, ...... ,,.,,,,,, ,.: .. :; .. ,."···coNSENT AGENDA 

March 14, 2019 

General Motion to Waive Full Reading and Approve Ordinance by Title Only Pursuant
to California Government Code Section 36934

hat the City Council: 

E
ECOMMENDATION

Approve a general motion to waive full reading an approve Ordinance by title only
pursuant to California Government Code Section 36934.

BACKGROUND 

In order to expedite the conduct of business at City Council meetings, California State
Law (California Government Code Section 36934) allows Ordinances to be read by title
if a majority of the legislative body supports the motion to waive the full reading.

Attachments:
None

Report Submitted By: Janet Martinez 
City Clerk 

�/1--(_ 
Raymond R. Cruz

�City Manager

Date of Report: March 7, 2019 



PUBLIC HEARING 

Annual Weed Abatement Program 

RECOMMENDATION That the City Council: 

ITEM NO. 8 

March 14, 2019 

• Conduct a Public Hearing on Weed Abatement and direct the Agricultural
Commissioner to abate the nuisance by having weeds, rubbish and refuse
removed.

BACKGROUND 

On February 14, 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 9617 declaring weeds 
to be a public nuisance on certain properties that had been inspected and found to 
contain a growth of weeds or to contain flammable rubbish. A list of the parcels is 
attached. 

The date of Thursday, March 14, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. was set for a Public Hearing of 
protests to abatement of weeds. Proper notices and postings in accordance with the 
Government Code have been made and the hearing of protests should be conducted. 
At this time, it would be appropriate for the Mayor to conduct the Public Hearing and 
hear from any person(s) who would like to address the City Council. 

Attachments: 
Resolution No. 9617 
Declaration List 

Submitted By: Janet Martinez, 
City Clerk 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Date of Report: February 15, 2018 























ITEM NO. 9 

March 14, 2019 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Adoption of Negative Declaration - Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Case No. 792 -
Development Agreement 01-2019 

A request to allow the construction and operation of a new 50-foot tall V-Shape digital 
billboard with 14' x 48' display areas located at 13060 Firestone Boulevard (APN: 7005-
001-019) within the M-2-FOZ, Heavy Manufacturing - Freeway Overlay Zone, subject
to Development Agreement 01-2019. (General Outdoor Advertising)

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the City Council: 
• Open the Public Hearing and receive any comments from the public regarding

Conditional Use Permit Case No. 792 and the related Environmental
Document, and thereafter close the Public Hearing; and

• Find and determine that the proposed project will not be detrimental to persons
or properties in the surrounding area or to the City in general, and will be in
conformance with the overall purpose and objective of the Zoning Regulations
and consistent with the goals, policies and programs of the City's General Plan;
and

• Approve and adopt the proposed Negative Declaration, which based on the
findings of the Initial Study indicates that there is no substantial evidence that
the proposed project will have a significant adverse effect on the environment;
and

• Find that the applicant's CUP request meets the criteria set forth in
§155.379(8), §155.384(C), and §155.716 of the Zoning Regulations, for the
granting of a Conditional Use Permit; and

• Approve Conditional Use Permit Case No. 792 subject to the conditions of
approval as contained within Resolution No. 9621; and

• Adopt Resolution No. 9621, which incorporates the City Council's findings and
actions regarding this matter; and

• Introduce Ordinance No. 1099, to approve Development Agreement No. 01-
2019 by and between the City of Santa Fe Springs and General Outdoor
Advertising.

BACKGROUND 

Ordinance No. 1036, adopted in November 2012, updated the City's billboard regulations 
which were severely outdated and failed to anticipate and regulate advertising trends 
such as electronic billboards, super graphics (building wraps), and mobile billboards. 
Pursuant to section 155.384(A) of Ordinance No. 1036, billboards are allowed only after 
a valid Conditional Use Permit has first been obtained and a Development Agreement 
has been approved. 

Report Submitted By: Laurel Reimer Date of Report: March 7, 2019 
Department of Planning & Development 

































































































































ITEM NO. 10 

March 14, 2019 

Introduction of Ordinance No. 1101 - Repealing Chapters 50 (Garbage and Refuse) 
and 119 (Recyclable Materials Dealer) and in Their Place Adopting a New Chapter 50 
(Collection of Solid Waste and Recyclables) 

.RECOMMENDATION S 

That the City Council take the following action: 

• Read by Title only, waive further reading and introduce for first reading ! 
Ordinance No. 1101, attached. J

BACKGROUND 

In June of 2016, the City of Santa Fe Springs tasked the Solid Waste and Recycling
consulting firm of MuniEnvironmental, LLC (Consultant) to review Chapter 50 and 119 
of the City Ordinance to prepare recommendations for City to consider. 

Consultant found that the existing Ordinance was deficient, did not address current 
regulatory recycling requirements, lacked measures to enforce rogue haulers, and 
needed language that coincides with current solid waste collection and recycling 
efforts. 

The proposed Ordinance presented here for your consideration replaces Chapter 50 
(Solid Waste and Recycling) and repeals Chapter 119 (Recycling). Incorporated in the 
proposed Ordinance is language that addresses requirements from CalRecycle, 
CalGreen Building code, proposes a new Recycling Permit program and addresses 
Construction Debris recycling requirements. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The ordinance alone will not have a fiscal impact; however it provides a mechanism in 
which through Council resolutions the City could increase its cost recovery for the solid 
waste and recycling program and thereby cover the cost of the program. 

?��1-y 
City Manager 

Attachment: 
1. Ordinance No. 1101

Report Submitted By: Maribel Garcia, Sr. Mngt. Assist. Date of Report: March 14, 2019 
City Manager's Office 





March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 1 

CHAPTER 50 

COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTE, RECYCLABLE MATERIAL AND 

CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION DEBRIS 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

50.01 Definitions  

“AB 939” aka “The Act” means the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989, and 

subsequent mandatory recycling legislations as may be amended in the Public Resources Code Section 

40000 et seq. and implementing regulations of CalRecycle. 

“Applicant” means any individual, firm, Permittee, limited liability company, association, partnership, 

political subdivision, government agency, municipality, industry, public or private corporation, or any 

other entity whatsoever who applies to the city for the applicable permit(s) or any individual, firm, 

Permittee, limited liability company, association, partnership, political subdivision, government agency, 

municipality, industry, public or private corporation, or any other entity submitting a Waste Management 

Plan to undertake any construction, demolition or renovation project within the city.  

“Application Fee” means the fee or assessment imposed by the City on new or returning Permittee’s. 

The fee is paid annually on or before permit expiration on June 30th of each year. Applications received 

after said date will not be pro-rated. The fee shall vary depending on status of applicant (“New” or 

“Renewal”) and shall change from time to time upon council resolution.  

“Automated Cart” or “AGCs”) means automated guided carts that are used to transport material 

between locations without human involvement and without a conveyor.  

“Baling” means the process of compacting by pressure resulting in a homogenous mass of like 

composition bound together by straps or wire. 

“Bin” means containers, whether residential, multi-family residential, commercial, industrial, or 

institutional, provided for temporary accumulation and collection of solid waste or recyclables for 

removal from all premises located within the city. Bins include but are not limited to, containers with 

capacity of at least one cubic yard and roll-off type service containers. 

“Building Official” means the chief building official of the City. 

“CalRecycle” Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery. 

“City Manager” means the City Manager or another person designated by the City Manager. 

“Collection” means the act of collecting Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Construction and Demolition 

Debris, at or near the place of generation. 

“Collection Vehicle” means the vehicle utilized in the collection, transportation, storage, transfer, or 

processing of solid waste or recyclable solid waste. 

“Commercial Permit” means a permit issued to Permittee to collect, transport, store, transfer or process 

solid-waste, source-separated material, and/or mixed-waste material, including Construction & 

Demolition material, from any Commercial business or establishment located within the City.  A 

maximum of four (4) Commercial Permits may be issued by the City at any time. 

“Composting” means the process of collecting, grinding, mixing, piling, and supplying sufficient 

moisture and air to organic materials, such as leaves, grass clippings, brush, and food waste, to speed 

natural decay to a finished product suitable for incorporating into topsoil as a soil amendment and for 

growing plants. Compost is different than mulch, which is a shredded or chipped organic product placed 

on top of soil as a protective layer.  

EXHIBIT A



March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 2 

“Construction” means the building of any facility or structure or any portion thereof including any 

tenant improvement or renovation to an existing facility or structure. 

“Construction and Demolition Debris” means bricks, stones, mortar, concrete, asphaltic concrete, 

wood, or other debris including used or discarded materials removed from premises during construction, 

renovation, remodeling, repair, or demolition operations on any pavement, house, commercial or 

industrial building, or other structure. 

 “Container” means a receptacle constructed of metal, plastic or some other impervious material and 

having a solid bottom. 

“Permittee” means the individual, firm, limited liability company, association, partnership, or private 

corporation, or any other entity person, company, or corporation entering into a contract with and 

receiving a permit for the collection and/or disposal of solid waste, other commodities, and/or recyclable 

materials within the city. 

“Conversion Rate” means the rate set forth in the standardized conversion rate table approved by the city 

pursuant to this Chapter for use in estimating the volume or weight of materials identified in a Waste 

Management Plan. 

“Covered Project” means any and every construction, demolition or renovation project within the city. 

Each project must meet a diversion rate of 75% (which may be changed time to time), failure to do so 

may result in fines, fee, penalties, civil and/or criminal charges, and a denial letter from City Manager or 

his/her designee at project completion.  

“Demolition” means the disseminating, razing, ruining, tearing down or wrecking of any facility, 

structure, pavement or building, whether in whole or in part, whether interior or exterior including, but 

not limited to soft demolition such as that associated with remodeling or the replacement of roofs. 

“Disposal” means the complete operation of treating and disposing of the accumulations of solid waste 

and the products or residue arising from such treatment. 

“Divert” means to use material for any purpose other than disposal in a landfill or transformation facility. 

“Diversion rate” means the percentage of total waste that a jurisdiction diverted from disposal at a 

Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery permitted landfill, MRF’s, waste-to-

energy, reclamation and transformation facilities through reduction, reuse, recycling programs, and/or 

composting programs , pursuant to California Code of Regulations Title 27.  As of the year 2000, 

jurisdictions are required by law to achieve 50 percent diversion, which may change from time to time 

per City and/or State regulations.  

“Electronic Waste” or “E-Waste” means consumer and business electronic equipment that is near or at 

the end of its useful life including but not limited to, computers, computer peripherals, telephones, 

answering machines, radios, stereo equipment, tape players/recorders, phonographs, video cassette 

players/recorders, compact disc players/recorders, calculators, and some appliances.  Certain components 

of some electronic products contain materials that render them hazardous, depending on their condition 

and density. For instance, California law currently views nonfunctioning CRTs (cathode ray tubes) from 

televisions and monitors as hazardous. 

“Franchise” means the right of a person or entity to make arrangements for the collection and 

transportation of solid waste, recyclable material and recyclable solid waste to landfills, transformation 

facilities, material recovery facility or other Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery permitted 

solid waste management facilities, and/or the ability to extricate recyclable material from all solid waste 

including recyclable solid waste and green waste, or composting material. A franchise is only applicable 

to Residential and/or Commercial Permittees.  

http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/lgcentral/glossary/#TransFacility


 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 3 

“Franchise Fee” means the applicable percentage of gross receipts of Residential and/or Commercial 

permittees that must be submitted monthly or quarterly upon submission of tonnage report for the 

applicable time period.  

“Garbage” means waste, animal and vegetable matter of every kind and character including such waste 

food, animal and vegetable matter as accumulates in hotels, restaurants, eating houses and private homes 

in the kitchens and on the tables of such places; and also including such waste, animal and vegetable 

matter as accumulates in meat markets, grocery stores and fruit and vegetable markets. 

“Generator” means any individual, partnership, joint venture, unincorporated private organization or 

corporation which accumulates, exports or causes to be exported, from the city Solid Waste and/or 

Recyclable Materials which is sold, donated, or charged a fee by a Permittee identified in Section 50.20. 

“Graffiti” means a non-permitted inscription or drawing, including “tagging,” written on a public or 

private surface, wall, or building. 

“Green Building” means the practice of creating buildings that are designed, built, renovated, 

operated, or reused in an ecological and resource-efficient manner. Also known as sustainable building. 

Green building includes the practices of salvaging material from building demolition for reuse in new 

buildings and for recycling. The term, green building, is also applied to buildings that minimize impact to 

the environment, protect health and enhance productivity of occupants, and utilize energy, water, and 

other resources efficiently. 

“Green Waste” means leaves, grass clippings, brush, branches and other forms of organic matter 

generated from landscapes and gardens and incidental pieces of untreated and unpainted scrap lumber no 

longer than twenty-four inches and containing no metal objects, separated from other forms of Solid 

Waste. Green Waste also includes holiday trees from which all tinsel, flock, base attachments and 

ornaments have been removed. Green Waste does not include stumps or branches exceeding six inches in 

diameter or two feet in length, palm fronds, yucca, food waste, manure, dirt, rocks, garbage or any other 

form of Solid Waste which are not suitable for composting. 

“Gross Receipts” means the summation of all revenue/receipts that a Permittee/recycler collects during a 

certain period of time; either monthly or quarterly. It shall be the decision of the City whether payments 

based on Gross Receipts should be made monthly or quarterly.  

“Gross Tonnage Collected” means all commodities (regardless of the type) collected by a Permittee 

from within the City’s borders within a certain time-period; such as monthly, quarterly, annually.  

“Hazardous Waste” means (a) all waste defined or characterized as hazardous waste by the Resource 

Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et seq.) in 42 U.S.C. Section 6903 (5) as 

amended from time to time, and all implementing regulations, (b) all waste defined or characterized as a 

hazardous substance pursuant to the provisions of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 

Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 9601 et seq. (“CERCLA” or “Superfund”), as in 42 

U.S.C. Section 9601 (14), may be amended from time to time, and all implementing regulations, and (c) 

all waste defined or characterized as hazardous waste by agencies of the state of California (including 

without limitations the Department of Health Services, the Department of Toxic Substances Control and 

CalRecycle) having jurisdiction over solid and hazardous waste. The term “hazardous waste” 

means, in addition to any substance, included in any of the foregoing categories, those substances which 

are not normally permitted to be disposed of by generally accepted, sanitary landfill disposal methods, but 

which may be contained in solid waste streams. In the event of a conflict in the definitions employed by 

two or more governmental agencies having concurrent or overlapping jurisdiction over hazardous waste, 

the broader, more encompassing definition shall apply. 

“Materials Recovery Facility” or “MRF” means a Materials Recovery Facility permitted by the 

Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) and capable of guaranteeing a reduction 



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 4 

in the amount of waste residue through the diversion of materials, including but not limited to papers, 

glass, plastic, metal, organics, wood products, or fiber board. 

 “Permit Fee” means the fee or assessment imposed by the City on a Permittee that 1) charges a 

generator/customer to pick up a commodity (regardless of the type), or 2) Permittee which purchases a 

commodity or receives a commodity through donation from a Recycling Generator. The fee is due at the 

time Permittee submits their tonnage report, either monthly or quarterly. The fee shall be determined by 

City council resolution and shall vary time to time.  

“Permittee” means any individual, partnership, joint venture, unincorporated private organization or 

private corporation who has been issued a valid “Residential Collection Permit”, “Commercial Collection 

Permit”, and/or “Recyclable Material Dealer Permit” by the city as required by Section 50.20 that has not 

been suspended and/or revoked.    

“Project” means any activity for which the City requires a Waste Management Plan (WMP) for a 

building, construction, demolition or similar permit. 

“Receptacle” means containers, automated carts, or bins whether residential, multi-family residential, 

commercial, industrial, or institutional, provided for temporary accumulation and collection of solid waste 

or recyclables for removal from any premises located within the city. Receptacles include but are not 

limited to, containers, automated carts, bins, and roll-off type service containers. 

 “Recyclable Dealer” means any individual, partnership, joint venture, unincorporated private 

organization, or private corporation that has been issued a Recyclable Dealer Permit in accordance with 

this Chapter in order to legally provide collection services for any source separated recyclable material, 

and/or any other material that is transported within City limits and either recycled or disposed of at a 

CalRecycle permitted facility within or outside City limits. This includes dealers that purchase recyclable 

material from generators. 

“Recyclable Dealer Permit” means a permit which has been issued by City Council to any individual, 

partnership, joint venture, unincorporated private organization, or private corporation for the collection, 

transportation, storage, or processing of material which has a commercial value, and which is sold or 

donated to the permitted entity.  

“Recyclable Dealer Tonnage Fee” means a per ton permit fee that city may charge for collected 

recyclables to Recyclable Dealer Permittees, which will be determined from time to time upon City 

Council Resolution. 

“Recyclable Material” means material which has been source-separated from other forms of solid waste, 

whether or not there is a fee-for-purchase or a fee-for-hauling associated with the material. Any Permittee 

which transports recyclable material within the City shall have a valid permit per the requirements of 

Section 50.20.   

“Recyclable Material Bin” means a bin, vessel, can, cart or other receptacle used for accumulating and 

collecting recyclable material. 

“Recycle” or “Recycling” means the process of collecting, sorting, cleansing, treating, and reconstituting 

source separated single-category materials that would otherwise become solid waste and returning them 

to the economic mainstream in the form of raw material, reused, or reconstituted products which meet the 

quality standards necessary to be used in the marketplace.  

“Recycling Generator” means any individual, partnership, joint venture, unincorporated private 

organization or corporation which accumulates, exports or causes to be exported “Recyclable Materials” 

which is sold or donated to a Permittee in good-standing.  

“Redeemable Material” means a material which has commercial value, and which is sold or donated to 

an entity. Redeemable materials are commodities that have been source-separated from the solid waste 



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 5 

stream at the point of generation. If the Generator of redeemable material pays a Permittee (entity), such 

as a “Recyclable Material Dealer”, any consideration for collecting, processing, recycling, or transporting 

of “redeemable material,” the transaction shall be regarded as a sale or donation of “Redeemable 

Material” and therefore falls under Section 50.20 which requires purchaser/buyer to have a valid 

“Recyclable Material Dealer Permit” and submit the required reports and fees per Section 50.30. 

Redeemable Material shall be deemed to be contaminated if the container into which is has been placed 

contains more than one percent nonrecyclable material, or any amount of hazardous waste. 

“Refuse” or “Rubbish” means solid waste. 

“Renovation” means any change, addition or modification to an existing structure. 

“Residential Permit” means a permit issued to any individual, partnership, joint venture, unincorporated 

private organization or corporation to collect, transport, store or process solid-waste, source-separated 

material, and/or mixed-waste material, including Construction & Demolition material, from any 

residential property located within the City. A maximum of three (3) Residential Permits may be issued 

by the City at any time.   

“Residential property” means every lot in the city upon which is situated one or more but not more than 

four dwelling units including planned development projects and any other parcel which has been 

improved with a “duplex” or “triplex” residential dwelling unit designated and used as living quarters by 

human beings. Residential units shall not include hotels, motels, lodge halls, clubs, tourist camps, trailer 

camps, churches, commercial and industrial establishments, or any other lot containing more than four 

dwelling units or upon which commercial or industrial occupation is conducted. 

“Residue” means residual solid waste that is unable to be recycled and must therefore be taken to a 

landfill, transformation facility, or other permitted disposal facility pursuant to Title 27 of the California 

Code of Regulations. All facilities mentioned must be permitted with the Department of Resources 

Recycling and Recovery at the time of disposal.  

“Reuse” means further or repeated use of construction or demolition debris. 

 “Scavenging” means the unauthorized removal of recyclable material or any other commodity 

designated by the City to have recyclable properties or value by any person, individual, business, or solid 

waste entity other than those authorized by the City or established in accordance with this Chapter. 

“Self-Haul” means the activity of a Generator, whether it be Residential, Commercial, Industrial or 

Construction Demolition Debris, that hauls, transfers, or conveys any Solid Waste or Recyclables upon 

any public property, street or alley or upon any property of another. Any person that self-hauls any solid 

waste or recyclables within the City without a valid permit, shall be subject to all fines, fees, and penalties 

identified in this Chapter.  

“Salvage” means the controlled removal of construction or demolition debris from a permitted building 

or demolition site for the purpose of recycling, reuse, or storage for later recycling or reuse. 

“Solid Waste” means refuse, rubbish, garbage, sludges, and other discarded solid materials resulting 

from residential activities, and industrial and commercial operations including but not limited to: tree and 

shrubbery trimmings, lawn clippings, grass, weeds, leaves, chips, paper, pasteboard, magazines, books, 

rags, rubber, carpets, clothing, boots, shoes, hats, straw, packing boxes and cartons, crates, packing 

material and other kinds of combustible rubbish, trash or waste material. This does not include hazardous 

waste, radioactive waste, electronic waste, universal waste, or medical waste nor does not include solids 

or dissolved material in domestic sewage or other significant pollutants in water such as silt, dissolved or 

suspended solids in industrial wastewater effluents, dissolved materials in irrigation return flows or other 

common water pollutants. However, if any of these materials are separated from the water that carries 

them and are solidified, then they are considered solid waste.  



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 6 

Solid Waste additionally includes non-source separated or commingled material that is ten percent (10%) 

or more non-source separated, including: 

1. All putrescible and non-putrescible solid and semisolid waste; 

2. Garbage; 

3. Trash; 

4. Refuse; 

5. Paper (including all forms of paper products, shredded documents and cardboard); 

6. Rubbish; 

7. Ashes; 

8. Industrial wastes; 

9. Demolition and construction wastes; 

10. Abandoned vehicle parts; 

11. Discarded home and industrial appliances (does not include u-waste or e-waste); 

12. Dewatered, treated or chemically fixed sewage sludge which is not hazardous waste; 

13. Manure;  

14. Sludge; and 

15. Vegetable or animal solid and semisolid wastes and other discarded solid and semisolid 

wastes. 

“Solid Waste Collection Services” means the collection, transportation, storage, transfer, or processing 

of solid waste or recyclable solid waste for residential, commercial, industrial, construction or 

institutional user(s), customers, patrons, or residents. Only entities holding a valid Residential Collection 

Permit and/or Commercial Collection Permit in accordance with this Chapter shall be allowed to collect 

this material.  

“Solid Waste Permittee” means any individual, partnership, joint venture, unincorporated private 

organization, or private corporation that holds a valid Residential Collection Permit and/or Commercial 

Collection Permit in accordance with this Chapter to collect, transport, transfer or process solid-waste 

from a residential and/or commercial location within the city. 

“Source Separated Recyclable Material” means single type or category of Recyclable or Redeemable 

Material that has been segregated from all other materials. Source Separated Recyclable Material shall be 

deemed contaminated if the container into which it has been placed contains   more than ten percent 

(10%) of any other type of material (including but not limited to any mixed waste and/or any amount of 

hazardous waste). If a container is deemed “contaminated” it is therefore considered “Solid Waste” as 

defined under this Chapter. Effective June 30, 2019: Should the “Recyclable Dealer” Permittee’s charge 

to pick-up this material or any other type of material, they shall be subject to all fines, fees, penalties, and 

civil and/or criminal prosecution as provided herein.  

 “Spill Kit” means a kit containing material designed to absorb liquids in an emergency situation. 

“Special Waste” shall mean an item or element of solid waste identified in 22 California Code of 

Regulations Sections 66261.120, 66261.122 (or provision subsequently enacted in place of this provision) 

or any other waste which has been classified as special waste by resolution of the City Council. 

“The Act” shall mean the same as “AB 939”. 

“Transformation” Incineration, pyrolysis, distillation, gasification, or biological conversion other than 

composting. Transformation (Public Resources Code section 40201) does not include composting or 

biomass conversion. For purposes of diversion rate measurement, only waste sent to CalRecycle-

permitted transformation facilities is used in diversion rate calculations. Transformation counts as 

disposal, except in special circumstances beginning in the year 2000, when limited amounts of waste sent 

to CalRecycle-permitted transformation facilities may count as diversion.  



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 7 

“Universal Waste” or “U-Waste” reflects the traditional federal concept of identifying processes. In the 

case of universal wastes, there are supposedly no processes that can be clearly identified as the source of 

generation because they come from an infinite number of sources. California universal waste includes but 

is not limited to: 

• Batteries--Includes AAA, AA, C, D, button cell, 9-volt, both rechargeable and single use. These 

may contain some corrosive or reactive chemicals, as well as toxic heavy metals like cadmium. 

(Automotive type batteries are not universal waste. However, when they become waste, they are 

banned from the trash.). 

• Fluorescent lamps and tubes--Includes fluorescent tubes, compact fluorescent lamps, metal 

halide lamps, sodium vapor lamps, high intensity discharge (HID) lamps, and neon bulbs.  These 

lamps contain Mercury.  Mercury vapor might be released to the environment when they are 

broken. The mercury from broken lamps in trash bins could find its way to lakes and rivers during 

rain storms. 

• Thermostats--There is mercury inside the sealed glass "tilt switch" of the old-style thermostats 

(not the newer electronic kind). 

• Electronic Devices--Includes televisions and computer monitors, computers, printers, VCRs, cell 

phones, telephones, and radios. These devices often contain heavy metals like lead, cadmium, 

copper, and chromium. 

• Electrical Switches--Some electrical switches and relays contain mercury.  Such mercury 

switches can be found in some chest freezers, pre-1972 washing machines, sump pumps, electric 

space heaters, clothes irons, silent light switches, automobile hood and trunk lights, and ABS 

brakes. 

• Pilot Light Sensors--Mercury-containing switches associated with pilot light sensors are found 

in some gas appliances such as stoves, ovens, clothes dryers, water heaters, furnaces and space 

heaters. 

• Mercury Gauges--Some gauges, such as barometers, manometers, blood pressure, and vacuum 

gauges contain mercury. 

• Mercury Added Novelties--Examples include greeting cards that play music when opened; 

athletic shoes (made before 1997) with flashing lights in soles; and mercury maze games. 

• Mercury Thermometers--Mercury thermometers typically contain about a half gram of 

mercury. Many health clinics, pharmacies and doctor’s offices have thermometer exchange 

programs that will give you a new mercury-free fever thermometer in exchange for your old one. 

• Non-Empty Aerosol Cans that Contain Hazardous Materials--Many products in aerosol cans 

are toxic. And many aerosol cans contain flammables, like butane, as propellants for products like 

paint. If your aerosol can is labeled with words like TOXIC or FLAMMABLE don’t put it in the 

trash unless it is completely empty. 

“Unpermitted Haulers” means any person or entity that does not have a valid permit and/or is hauling 

material which they are not permitted to collect as identified in Section 50.20 and 50.25.  

“Waste Management Plan” means a completed Waste Management Plan form, approved by the City 

Manager or his/her designee in compliance with this Chapter, submitted by the applicant for any Covered 

Project.  

“WMP Compliance Official” means the City Manager or his/her designee authorized and responsible 

for implementing this Chapter. 

  



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 8 

§ 50.20 SOLID WASTE FRANCHISE/RECYCLABLE DEALER PERMIT REQUIRED. 

(A) No person shall remove, collect, convey, transport, store, or process, or cause to be removed, 

collected, conveyed, transported stored or processed any solid waste, recyclable material, and/or 

Construction and Demolition Debris upon, along or across any public street, alley, highway or other 

public place without first applying for and receiving a valid Residential Franchise, Commercial 

Franchise, or Recyclable Dealer Permit as provided herein  and complying with the provisions of 

Chapter 50. 

(B) Residential Franchise.  No person shall remove, collect, convey, transport, store or process, or 

cause to be removed, collected, conveyed, transported, stored or processed any solid waste, 

construction and demolition debris, and/or recyclable material from residential property within the 

city without first having obtained a valid Residential Franchise.  A maximum of three (3) 

Residential Franchises may be issued by the City at any time.   

1) Residents conveying generated bulky items, generated recyclables or small quantities of 

debris generated at owned or rented residential properties, shall have the option of 

subscribing with a Franchise hauler or Self-Haul their own generated materials to a 

CalRecycle permitted recycling or disposal facility, without procuring a Franchise or 

Recyclable Dealer Permit. 

2) Home-based businesses, including but not limited to home-based contractors and hired 

contractors generating waste, shall subscribe to collection services provided by a 

Franchised or Permitted collector, subject to the requirements of this Chapter. 

(C) Commercial Franchise.  No person shall remove, collect, convey, transport, store or process, or 

cause to be removed, collected, conveyed, transported, stored or processed any solid waste, 

Construction and Demolition Debris, and/or recyclable material from any non-residential property 

within the City without first having obtained a valid Commercial Franchise.  A maximum of four 

(4) Commercial Franchises may be issued by the City at any time.   

(D) Recyclable Dealer Permit.  No person shall remove, collect, convey, transport, store or process, or 

cause to be removed, collected, conveyed, transported, stored or processed any Source-Separated 

Recyclable Material and/or Redeemable Material within the city without first having obtained a 

valid Recyclable Dealer Permit.    

§ 50.21 PERMIT APPLICATION; CONSIDERATION BY CITY COUNCIL. 

(A) An applicant for a Recyclable Material Dealer Permit shall submit an application fee as set by 

resolution of the City Council, file a permit application in the form required by the City Manager or 

his/her designee and any other documentation necessary for consideration of the application to 

ensure the applicant is likely to comply with the requirements of this Chapter and to meet public 

health, safety and welfare standards. 

(B) Any applicant for a Residential/Commercial Franchise, or Recyclable Materials Dealer permit shall 

have their application considered by City Council. City Council shall have the sole authority 

whether to grant or reject the permit(s) sought.  

(C) Any person or entity applying for a permit at any time must first meet the following requirements: 

1) Submittal of completed application packet; including any and all forms approved by the 

City Manager or his/her designee. 

2) Payment of Application fee 

3) Payment and acquisition of Business license 

4) Must be in good standing with the City. Any applicant that has previously had their permit 

suspended or revoked shall not be eligible to apply for a new permit indefinitely. 



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 9 

§ 50.22 FEE(S) 

(A) Franchise Haulers - Residential, Commercial and Construction Demolition Debris 

1) Franchise Fee: Each of the approved three (3) Residential Franchise haulers, and four (4) 

commercial Franchise haulers, shall pay quarterly Franchise Fees in the amount and/or 

percentage of gross revenue, set by resolution of the City Council. 

(B) Recyclable Dealer Permit 

1) Application Fee: Each applicant shall pay an initial application fee in the amount as set by 

resolution of the City Council. 

2) Renewal Fee: Thereafter, on an annual basis, any holder of a Recyclable Dealer’s Permit 

shall file for and pay an annual renewal fee in the amount as set by resolution of the City 

Council. 

3) Per Ton Fee: In addition to the Application fee required herein, any holder of a Recyclable 

Dealer Permit that Self-Hauls their own Recyclables utilizing their own vehicles and driver, 

shall pay a per ton fee in the amount as set by resolution of the City Council. 

4) Decal Fee: Any and all bins, roll-offs and/or containers, utilized by a Recyclable Dealer 

and its generator, for the storage and handling of Recyclable materials, shall apply for and 

procure on an annual basis, a “Bin Decal”.  Said Bin Decal shall be affixed to each bin, 

roll-off or container at all times. Bin Decal fees shall be set by resolution of the City 

Council. 

§ 50.23 MANDATORY SERVICE; VIOLATION; FEES AND PENALTIES. 

(A) Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, all solid waste collected from residential or non-

residential property including commercial/industrial premises for a fee, service charge, or other 

consideration, may only be collected, conveyed, and/or transported across city streets by the holder 

of a valid Residential Franchise or Commercial Franchise.  

(B) VIOLATION. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Santa Fe Springs Municipal Code to the 

contrary, any person/company who violates any provision of this Chapter, or who fails to comply 

with any obligation or requirement of this Chapter, is guilty of a misdemeanor unless the offense is 

charged as an infraction by a prosecuting attorney.  

1) Each person/company shall be guilty of a separate offense for each and every day, or part 

thereof, during which a violation of this Chapter, or of any law or regulation referenced in 

this Chapter, is allowed, committed, continued, maintained or permitted by such person, 

and shall be punishable accordingly. 

(C) FEES & PENALTIES. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Santa Fe Springs Municipal 

Code to the contrary, any Permittee and or person/company who violates any provision of this 

Chapter, or who fails to comply with any obligation or requirement of this Chapter, shall be liable to 

the City for all Permit fees (same calculation used to determine permittee fee(s) due), in addition to 

any and all costs associated with auditing and other applicable fees accumulated in the efforts of 

collecting any fees/penalties due as provided herein.  

Penalty, see § 10.97  

 

 

  



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 10 

§ 50.24 REQUIRED COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS, REGULATIONS 

Each Solid Waste Generator, Solid Waste Franchisee and Recyclable Dealer Permittee shall comply with 

the provisions of this Chapter and any and all applicable sections of the City’s Municipal Code, Public 

Resources Code or any other local, state or federal code having jurisdiction. The collector(s) and 

generator shall be required to cooperate with the city in solid waste generation studies, preparation of 

waste stream audits and the submission of information required by the city to meet the reporting 

requirements of The Act or other applicable legislation as may be amended from time to time, and to 

implement measures consistent with the city’s source reduction and recycling element and household 

hazardous waste element in order for the city to reach the mandated diversion and other goals as 

established by the act as it may be amended from time to time. The collector(s) shall submit to the city 

monthly and or quarterly reports which show the number of tons collected and the tonnage delivered to 

disposal facilities, itemized by disposal facility.  

(A) Mandatory Solid Waste Services: Each Solid Waste Generator, including but not limited to 

Residential, Commercial and Industrial, shall subscribe to regular solid waste collection services 

provided by a Franchise Hauler for the collection, transportation, processing, recycling, and/or 

disposal of solid waste generated materials. 

1) Each occupied residential unit shall, at a minimum of once per week, subscribe for the 

collection transportation, processing, recycling, and/or disposal of solid waste generated 

materials. 

2) Each commercial/industrial generator shall, at a minimum of once per week, subscribe 

for the collection transportation, processing, recycling, and/or disposal of solid waste 

generated materials. 

(B) Mandatory Recycling: Pursuant to Assembly Bill 939 (“The Act”), and subsequent legislation 

mandating compulsory recycling programs. Each generator of Solid Waste, including Residential, 

Commercial and Industrial generators, shall cooperate with the City and/or its service provider, in 

the establishment and implementation of mandatory recycling programs. 

1) Mandatory Commercial Recycling: Pursuant to Assembly Bill 341, solid waste 

generators, meeting the criteria established by said Assembly Bill, shall implement a 

regulator approved solid waste recycling and diversion program and subscribe for 

collection and recycling services with either a Franchise Hauler or a Permitted Materials 

Recyclable Dealer. 

2) Mandatory Organics Recycling: Pursuant to AB 1826 and subsequent legislation, any 

and all solid waste generators, meeting the criteria established by certain legislation 

and/or CalRecycle, shall subscribe for organics collection and recycling services.  Said 

services may include source separated organics recycling, commingled materials 

recovery processing or solid waste containing organic materials or any permitted and 

established program that meets the requirements of said legislation. 

§ 50.25 NUMBER OF PERMITTEES ALLOWED; TYPE OF MATERIAL COLLECTED 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a holder of one type of permit shall not be prohibited from also holding 

another type of permit, subject to approval by the City Council.  

(A) Residential & Commercial Permits: 

1) Not more than three (3) Residential Franchisees, and four (4) Commercial Franchisees for 

the collection of solid waste shall be issued and outstanding at any given time.  



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 11 

2) The holder of a commercial and/or residential Franchise shall be allowed to collect any 

type of material as allowed under this Chapter.   

3) Each Permittee shall have a local or toll-free telephone number and a customer service call 

center within the southern California region. 

(B) Recyclable Dealer Permits: 

1) There shall be no limit on the amount of Recyclable Dealer Permits. 

2) Any Generator using the services of a Recyclable Dealer shall first separate (“source-

separated material”) such recyclable materials from all solid waste, as defined herein. Solid 

waste and recyclable/redeemable materials shall not intentionally be mixed in the same 

container.  

3) All containers used for the storage of recyclable materials shall be clearly marked with the 

words, "Recyclable Materials Only," and shall identify the Material contained within the 

Bin (e.g. “Metal”, “Cardboard”, etc.).   

i All Recycling bins or containers shall have affixed, in a highly visible location, a 

current and valid City of Santa Fe Springs “Container Decal”.  Said Container 

Decals are available to permitted Recyclable Dealers only. 

4) Any holder of a Recyclable Dealer Permit that collects, conveys, transports or hauls any 

material other than Recyclable Material that they are permitted to handle, shall be subject 

to all fine and penalties in accordance with Section 50.30, Section 10.97 and the current 

Rate/Fee Schedule, as well as suspension and/or revocation of any and all permits currently 

being held by Permittee. 

5) Certain Generators, utilizing Generator owned vehicles, bins, and drivers, may apply for a 

Recyclable Dealers Permit to haul recyclables to a permitted recycling and diversion 

facility.  Generator shall pay all applicable fees and report all weights and commodities as 

required by this Chapter and the current Rate/Fee Schedule 

6) Each Permittee shall have a local or toll-free telephone number and a customer service call 

center within the Southern California region. 

7) Hauling – Purchase – of - Recyclables 

i A Recyclable Dealer Permittee is only authorized for the collection of Recyclable 

Material as identified in their permit application to purchase and haul Recyclable 

and/or Redeemable Materials, as defined in this Chapter, from any property within 

the city, provided that not less than 90% of the material removed is source-

separated and is recycled, reused and/or taken to a certified recycling center. On 

July 1, 2019, the applicable fee(s) as set forth in Section 50.22 and the current 

Rate/Fee Schedule shall apply. 

8) Hauling – Fee – for – Service 

i Permitted Recyclable Materials Dealers shall be allowed to charge a 

generator/customer a fee to haul any Recyclable Material (that said Permittee is 

permitted to haul), from any business located within the city, provided that 90% of 

the material removed is Source Separated, and no more than 10% of each 

commodity is contaminated with other material, except in the case of construction 

debris, where the requirement shall be 75% diverted.  The fee- for-service permittee 

as set forth herein shall remain in effect until June 30, 2019, upon which fee-for-

service permits shall expire and are not renewable. 

  



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 12 

§50.26 COMPLIANCE WITH DIVERSION REQUIREMENTS 

Pursuant to the requirements of The Act, each California municipality is mandated to implement certain 

recycling and diversion program, having been identified in the City’s Source Reduction and Recycling 

Element (SRRE), to meet the state minimum diversion rate requirements. 

(A) Under no circumstance shall a Recyclable Dealer Permittee collect, convey, or transport loads 

containing more than 10% residue for source-separated recyclable and/or redeemable material from 

any property within the city. 

(B) Each holder of Solid Waste Franchise is required to implement by means of a submitted and 

approved “Recycling and Diversion Plan”, including but not limited Residential, Commercial, 

Industrial and Construction Demolition Debris sectors, prescribed programs, activities and practices 

in order to meet CalRecycle’s mandated minimum diversion and recycling requirements. Each 

approved Recycling and Diversion Plan shall be reviewed for compliance every six (6) months. 

Additionally, City is, by way of this Chapter, requiring a minimum diversion rate of 75% for each 

construction and demolition project. Franchisee’s failure to implement said Plan may be subject to 

suspension and or revocation of Franchise privileges by the City Council, City Manager or his/her 

designee. Each Franchisee hereby agree to and shall Indemnify and hold harmless the City, it’s 

elected and appointed boards, commissions, officers, employees, and agents (collectively the 

indemnitees) from and against any and all loss, liability, penalty, claim, demand, action, proceeding 

or fines associated with The Act, in the event that Franchisee fails to meet the diversion target(s) set 

forth in said Recycling and Diversion Plan. In addition, with regard to said Franchisee, the following 

procedures shall be enforced to remedy the diversion short-fall: 

1) Franchisee shall be given a 30-day notice of correction to remedy diversion deficiencies. 

Franchisee shall submit a revised Recycling and Diversion Plan within 30-days of a 

correction notice. 

2) Should Franchisee fail to remedy aforementioned diversion deficiency and/or fail to submit 

a plan of remedy after 60-days from the correction notice, Franchisee may be given a six 

(6) months’ notice to cease all or certain collection operations. City Council, City Manager 

or his/her designee may choose to not impose a permit suspension if good cause is shown.  

Franchise Hauler(s) may take into account each generator’s recycling and diversion activities in their 

diversion quantification.  Should a Franchise Hauler decide to incorporate a generator’s recycling and 

diversion activities in order to meet state mandated diversion requirements, hauler shall include 

documentation and evidence of the materials and weights being utilized in determining the diversion rate 

calculation.  

City is aware that certain recyclable material markets may/are under duress and could negatively impact 

Franchisee’s ability to meet the requirements of The Act.  Should CalRecycle regulators relax certain 

policies and/or adjust recycling requirement mandates, City and Solid Waste Franchisees shall jointly 

prescribe to said remedies. 

Penalty, see § 10.97  

§50.27 COOPERATION WITH CITY 

Each Franchisee, Permittee and Generator shall cooperate with City and/or designated consultants in solid 

waste disposal characterization studies and waste stream audits and shall implement measures adequate to 

achieve the city’s source reduction, recycling and waste stream diversion goals for the solid waste stream. 

Each Franchisee and Permittee, at its own expense shall submit to the city information and reports 

necessary for the city to meet its reporting obligations imposed by The Act and/or other legislation, and 

the regulations implementing The Act and/or subsequent legislation.  

§50.28 EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS AND PUBLIC AWARENESS PROGRAMS 



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 13 

It shall be the responsibility of each Permittee to develop and distribute materials and information 

sufficient to: 

(A) Educate its customers as to the recycling services provided by the Permittee;  

(B) Allow the city to meet recycling educational needs of the city, as may be required by local, 

state or federal authorities during the period of the collector’s permit.  

§50.29 COST RECOVERY SPECIAL FUND 

(A) Upon determination of the City Council, each Permittee shall be required to pay a fee for purposes of 

establishing a “cost recovery special fund” pursuant to the act in an amount to be established from 

time to time by the City Manager.  

(B) Funds deposited into the cost recovery special fund shall be used and applied to pay for costs 

associated with the preparation, adoption, and implementation of the city’s source reduction and 

recycling element (SRRE). 

(C) Any and all such fees shall be paid concurrently with the regular submission of the monthly/quarterly 

weight report.  

§ 50.30 RECYCLABLE DEALERS TONNAGE REPORTS, FEES, PENALTY FOR LATE 

PAYMENT, AND RECORD RETENTION 

(A) On a monthly basis, at their sole expense, all Permitted Recyclable Dealers shall furnish monthly 

tonnage reports to the city, on a form provided by, or acceptable to the City Manager and/or his/her 

designee of the Permittee's total collected tonnage for the reporting period as set forth herein.  

(B) The afore mentioned tonnage report shall include, at a minimum, the following: 

(a) Total number of tons collected,  

(b) Total number of tons recycled,  

(c) The number of tons per commodity collected,   

(d) Number of tons of residue and where the residue was disposed of during the previous 

month,  

(e) The name, address, and telephone number of each solid waste disposal and/or 

recycling facility used by the Permittee during the reporting period, 

(f) The generator of the recyclable material and or permit number, and 

 (g) Each report shall be signed by an officer of Permittee.  

(C) Each tonnage report shall be submitted with payment to the city no later than thirty (30) days 

following the last calendar reporting month to the City Manager or his/her designee by 5:00 p.m. 

(D) At the time the tonnage report is filed, the full amount of all fees due, as set forth herein, shall be 

remitted to the city. The City Manager or his/her designee may establish shorter reporting periods 

for any Permittee if it is deemed necessary in order to insure remittance of the Permit Fee. The City 

Manager or his/her designee may require additional information from the Permittee in order to 

verify the permit/tonnage fee payment. A final filing and payment are due immediately upon 

cessation of business by Permittee for any reason (including the sale of company and/or assets).  

1) Each holder of a Recyclable Dealer Permit (“Hauling – Purchase-of-Recyclables”, 

See Section 50.25) shall pay a quarterly/monthly per ton fee. The fee shall be 

determined from time to time by resolution of the City Council. 

2) Each holder of a Recyclable Dealer Permit (“Hauling – Fee- for-Service.”, See 

Section 50.25) shall pay a monthly permit Fee. The fee shall be determined from time 

to time by resolution of the City Council. NOTE: All Recyclable Dealer Permits 

(“Hauling – Fee-for-service”) shall expire on June 30, 2019 at midnight. This type of 

permit cannot be renewed.  



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 14 

(E) The penalty for late payment of any Permit Fee or due, shall be 50% of the amount payable. The 

City Manager or his/her designee may excuse the payment of any such penalty upon good cause 

being shown for such late payment.  

(F) The city shall have the right, upon reasonable advance notice, to inspect, audit and copy all records 

relating to the permit subject to applicable laws. In the absence of extraordinary circumstances, five 

business day notice shall be considered reasonable. Such records should be made available to the 

city at the Permittee’s regular place of business, but in no event outside the County of Los Angeles. 

The city reserves the right to employ third party consultant to examine the Permittee’s records as 

necessary to obtain data relating to the permit and Permit Fees.  

1) If the examination discloses a three percent (3%) or greater material deviation 

with respect to the gross receipts reported by the Permittee or the examination 

discloses the Permittee is charging or billing below or above the collection and 

disposal rates approved by the City Council, the cost of the audit (including 

attorney fees, etc.) shall be borne entirely by the permittee.  

2) If the examination discloses Permit Fees that are due, these Permit Fees are considered 

delinquent and subject to the 50% late payment penalty outlined in this section. 

(G) Additionally, a material deviation with respect to the gross receipts reported by the permittee 

or the examination discloses the permittee is charging or billing below or above the City 

Council approved rates, the collection permit will be subject to revocation as set forth in Section 

50.36, 50.37 and 50.38, and all other applicable remedies permitted by law. The City Manager or 

his/her designee may immediately suspend any and/or all permits that the Permittee may hold.   

(H) It shall be the duty of every Permittee liable for the collection and payment to the city of any fee 

imposed by this Chapter to keep and preserve for a period of (5) five-years, all records as may be 

necessary to determine the amount of such Permit Fee. 

(I) It shall be the duty of every Permittee, to keep invoices and any other relevant records, for the 

purpose of determining fees owed by Permittee for a period of 5 years. Permittee shall provide any 

relevant records to City upon request within five (5) business days. Permittee must keep and 

preserve for a period of (5) five-years, all records as may be necessary to determine the amount of 

such Permit Fee that Permittee owes to City.  

Penalty, see § 10.97 

§ 50.31 COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL RATES 

The rates charged by the holder of a Residential Permit and/or Commercial Permit for collecting and 

disposing of solid waste shall be established by City Council resolution. 

§ 50.32 COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL FRANCHISE QUARTERLY REPORTS, 

PENALTY FOR LATE PAYMENT, AND RECORD RETENTION 

(A) On not less than quarterly basis, the holder of Commercial and/or Residential Franchise at their sole 

expense shall furnish collection, disposal and diversion reports to the city, on a form provided by, or 

acceptable to, the City Manager or his/her designee the information required in this section.  

(B) If the Franchisee has more than one Collection Franchise, Franchisee shall submit a separate 

tonnage report for each Franchise.  

(C) The quarterly tonnage reports shall include, at a minimum, the following: 

(a) Total number of tons collected,  

(b) Total number of tons recycled,  

(c) The number of tons per commodity collected, i.e. solid waste, recyclables and/or 

organics. 



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 15 

(d) The number of residue tons and where the residue was disposed of during the 

reporting period,  

(e) The name, address, and telephone number of each solid waste disposal and/or 

recycling facility used by the Franchisee during the reporting period, 

(f) The generator of the recyclable material, and 

(e) Each report shall be signed by an officer of the entity reporting.  

(D) Each quarterly tonnage report and payment shall be submitted to the city no later than thirty (30) 

days following the reporting period to the City Manager or his/her designee by 5:00 p.m. At the 

time the report is filed, the full amount of the Permit Fee shall be remitted to the city. The City 

Manager or his/her designee may establish shorter reporting periods for any Franchisee if it is 

deemed necessary by the City Manager in order to insure remittance of the Franchise Fee. The City 

Manager or his/her designee may require additional information from the Franchisee in order to 

verify the Franchise Fee payment. A final filing and payment are due immediately upon cessation 

of business by Franchisee for any reason. 

(E) The penalty for late payment of any Fee shall be 50% of the amount payable. The City Manager or 

his/her designee may excuse the payment of any such penalty upon good cause being shown for 

such late payment.   

(F) The city shall have the right, upon reasonable advance notice, to inspect, audit and copy all records 

relating to the Franchise as authorized by law. In the absence of extraordinary circumstances, (5) 

five business day notice shall be considered reasonable. Such records should be made available to 

the city at the Franchisee’s regular place of business, but in no event outside the County of Los 

Angeles. The city reserves the right to employ a third-party consultant to examine the Franchisee’s 

records as necessary to obtain data relating to the Franchise Fees.  

a If the examination discloses a three percent (3%) or greater material deviation with 

respect to the gross receipts reported by the Permittee or the examination discloses 

the Permittee is charging or billing below or above the collection and disposal rates 

approved by the City Council, the cost of the audit shall be borne entirely by the 

Permittee.  

b If the examination discloses Franchise or Permit Fees that are due, these Fees are 

considered delinquent and subject to the 50% late payment penalty outlined in this Chapter. 

(G) Additionally, a material three percent (3%) or greater deviation with respect to the gross 

receipts reported by the Permittee or the examination discloses the Franchisee is charging or 

billing below or above the City Council approved rates, the Franchise will be subject to 

revocation. The City Manager or his/her designee may immediately suspend any and/or all permits 

that the Franchisee may hold.   

(H) It shall be the duty of every Franchisee liable for the collection and payment to the city of any fee 

imposed by this Chapter to keep and preserve for a period of five years all records as may be 

necessary to determine the amount of said Franchise and or Permit Fee.  

Penalty, see § 10.97 

§ 50.33 DURATION OF RESIDENTIAL AND/OR COMMERCIAL FRANCHISE. 

Any Franchise which is in effect on the date of the ordinance enacting this Chapter shall remain in full 

force and effect through the duration of the respective Franchise term. A Franchisee shall comply with the 

provisions of this Chapter so long as the requirements set forth for compliance do not conflict with any 

current Franchise agreement or the constitutionally protected rights provided for under any existing 

Franchise agreement. The provisions of this Chapter in no way confirm, modify or extend existing 

contractual agreements. 



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 16 

§ 50.34 DURATION OF RECYCLABLE DEALER PERMIT. 

Recyclable Dealer Permits shall renew annually so long as Permittee is in full compliance with this 

ordinance and pays the renewal fee prior to its expiration of June 30th of each fiscal year. “Fee-for-Service 

Recyclable Dealer Permittee” shall expire on June 30th, 2019.  

§ 50.35 TRANSFERABILITY. 

No permit granted pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter shall be assigned or transferred by the 

Permittee. 

§50.36 SUSPENSION OF PERMIT BY CITY MANAGER 

Based upon prima facie evidence of a violation of the provisions of this Chapter, a Residential Franchise, 

Commercial Franchise, and/or Recyclable Dealer Permit may be suspended by the City Manager by 

providing written notice of suspension of the Franchise/Permit that includes information regarding the 

violation, specifies the length of time the permit is suspended and specifies requirements for removal of 

the suspension.  

§ 50.37 REVOCATION.  

If after notice has been given to a Franchisee or Permittee that the right to collect has been suspended by 

the City Manager or his/her designee, Franchisee/Permittee shall have the opportunity to appeal that 

decision to City Council. City Council shall have the sole authority to permanently revoke 

Franchise(s)/Permit(s) or shall remove suspension. If the right to collect has been revoked, no right to 

collect shall thereafter be granted to said Franchisee/Permittee. City Council Revocation is not subject to 

cause and the Franchisee/Permittee will be given 6-months to cease operations for any permanent services 

provided, and 1-week notice for any temporary bin/construction and demolition project(s). The decision 

of the City Council shall be final. 

§50.38 APPEAL TO CITY COUNCIL. 

The City Manager’s decision to suspend or revoke a permit as set forth in § 50.36 may be appealed to the 

City Council. Such appeal shall be in writing and filed with the City Clerk within 7 calendar days from 

the date of the notice of suspension/revocation. The appeal shall set forth in summary, the position of the 

appellant with respect to the alleged violation specified by the City Manager as the grounds of 

suspension. The City Council shall hear the appeal within 60-days of the filing of the notice of appeal 

with the City Clerk and the Clerk shall provide the appellant at least 10 days prior written notice of the 

date and time of hearing. At such hearing, the appellant shall be entitled to be present, to be represented 

by an attorney and to present witnesses and testimony on behalf of his appeal. Following completion of 

the hearing, if the City Council finds that the appellant violated the provisions of this Chapter, the City 

Council may uphold or overturn the City Manager’s decision, permanently revoke the permit, or take 

such lesser punitive action as in its discretion it may deem proper under the circumstances. The decision 

of the City Council shall be final. 

  



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 17 

MEANS OF COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 

§ 50.39 RESIDENTIAL FRANCHISE:  FREQUENCY AND ROUTES OF COLLECTION 

The city shall provide for the collection and disposal of solid waste from all premises in the city at least 

once each calendar week. The City Manager or his/her designee shall have charge and supervision of such 

collection and removal and shall have prior approval of all routes and days for the collection and removal 

of solid waste from all residential areas of the city so as to conform to the provisions of this Chapter. 

When such routes or days of collection are established or changed, the City Manager or his/her designee 

shall give notice thereof in such manner as is deemed best by the City Manager or his/her designee. 

§ 50.40 COMMERCIAL FRANCHISE:  FREQUENCY AND ROUTES OF COLLECTION  

The city shall provide for the collection and disposal of solid waste from all premises in the city at least 

once each calendar week. The City Manager or his/her designee shall have charge and supervision of such 

collection and removal and shall have prior approval of all routes and days for the collection and removal 

of solid waste from all non-residential areas of the city so as to conform to the provisions of this Chapter. 

When such routes or days of collection are established or changed, the City Manager or his/her designee 

shall give notice thereof in such manner as is deemed best by the City Manager or his/her designee. 

§ 50.41 INTERFERENCE WITH THE COLLECTION 

No person, except a Franchisee/Permittee possessing a valid Franchise/Permit for the collection of solid 

waste, recyclable material, or demolition and construction debris shall collect, remove, dispose of, or 

interfere in any manner with any container or receptacle, or the contents thereof. 

§ 50.42 FLOW CONTROL 

The city reserves whatever, if any, right it may receive from local, state or federal authorities to exercise 

“flow control”, i.e., the right to select disposal facilities and materials recovery facilities to which the 

solid waste collected, pursuant to the Franchise, is taken. In the event that the city directs collector to 

transport solid waste to a particular disposal facility or materials recovery facility, city and collector agree 

to use their best efforts to obtain indemnification against CERCLA Superfund and related claims from the 

operator of the disposal facility or materials recovery facility to which solid waste collected, pursuant to 

the Franchise, is taken for disposal or materials recovery. In the event that the city requires collector to 

utilize a disposal facility or materials recovery facility not owned or operated by collector or an affiliate 

of collector pursuant to this provision, the city shall indemnify and hold harmless collector for delivering 

solid waste to the designated disposal facility or materials recovery facility. In the event that the city 

selects a transfer or disposal facility pursuant to this provision, collector shall be entitled to a rate 

adjustment to offset for any substantiated increase in expenses resulting from the city’s exercise of “flow 

control”.  

§50.43 MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT; VEHICLES TO HAVE NAME OF COLLECTOR 

ON SIDES. 

(A) Each Franchisee/Permittee shall provide an adequate number of vehicles and equipment for the 

collection, transportation, recycling, and disposal services for which it is responsible under this 

Chapter. All equipment used in the collection of solid waste and recyclable materials shall conform 

to the highest industry standards, shall be maintained in a clean and efficient condition, and shall 

comply with all measures and procedures promulgated by all agencies with jurisdiction including 

but not limited to Air Quality Management District (AQMD) California Department of 

Transportation (CALTRANS) and the Highway Patrol. 

(B) All vehicles used by a collector shall be maintained in compliance with all applicable State and 

local laws, and shall include by the following: 



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 18 

(1) The name of the collection firm, together with the phone number of the collector, shall be 

printed or painted in legible letters, not less than four inches in height, on both sides of all 

trucks and conveyances used to collect or transport collected materials within the city; 

(2) Each vehicle shall be constructed and used so that no material will blow, fall, or leak out of 

the vehicle. Any material dropped or spilled in collection or transfer shall immediately be 

cleaned up by the operator. A broom, shovel, and Spill Kit shall be carried at all times on 

each vehicle for this purpose; and 

(3) Should the City Manager, or designee, at any time give notification in writing to a collector 

that any vehicle does not comply with the standards set forth herein, the vehicle shall 

immediately be removed from service in the city and shall not be used again until approved 

in writing by the City Manager, or designee. 

(C) All equipment used to collect materials, including vehicles and containers, shall be kept free of 

graffiti. 

Penalty, see § 10.97 

§ 50.44 RECEPTACLES REQUIRED FOR RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY; SPECIFICATIONS. 

Every holder of a valid Residential Franchise shall provide containers for automated collection as 

specified by the City Manager and/or this Chapter. 

Penalty, see § 10.97 

§ 50.45 PLACEMENT OF RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL BINS 

All solid waste to be collected shall be set out or placed by the owner or occupant of a residential or 

commercial property as follows: 

Residential Property: 

(A) Where a residential property is contiguous to a paved alley, all articles for collection shall be set out 

or placed at one and the same location at the alley or property line; 

(B) Where the residential property is not contiguous to a paved alley, all articles for collection shall be 

set out or placed at one and the same location in the public parkway or at the curb line; 

(C) No solid waste shall be set out for collection except that which is accumulated on the residential 

premises from which the collection is made, by the owners or occupants of said premises in the use 

of the premises; 

(D) All waste and recycling containers shall be removed from the curb or alley within 24-hours of the 

scheduled collection day by the service recipient. 

Commercial Property: 

(A) Each owner or occupant of a commercial property shall place all solid waste originating from such 

property in bins provided by the collector(s). Such bins shall be placed at the rear of such 

properties, or if the premises are so situated that the collector is unable to collect at such location, 

then at the sides of such properties if space is available at such location.  

(B) Solid waste shall not be compacted in bins furnished by the collector by any mechanical means 

without permission of the collector.  

(C) The owner or occupant of commercial or industrial property shall arrange with the collector for as 

many collections per week as shall be necessary, but in no case less than one time per week to 

remove all such solid waste from said property as frequently as the bin becomes filled.  

§ 50.46 METHOD OF KEEPING CONTENTS FOR COLLECTION. 

Every person occupying or having charge or control of any premises in the city shall keep all solid waste 

and recyclable material, except baled recyclables, in such containers and receptacles as are required by 

this Chapter, in accordance with stormwater best management practices as established by NPDES. 



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 19 

Penalty, see § 10.97 

§ 50.47 TIME OF PLACING FOR RESIDENTIAL COLLECTION. 

(A) Receptacles shall be placed along the street curb in front of the premises from which the solid waste 

and recyclable material are to be removed or along the property line of the alley in the rear or at the 

side thereof, according to the route prescribed by the City Manager along such street or such alley, 

before 7:00 a.m. on the days prescribed by the City Manager for the collection on such route. 

(B) No person shall place, or permit any collection receptacle to be, on the curb, parkway, street, alley 

or any other area near any residence earlier than 6:00 p.m. on the day preceding regular collection, 

and no person shall leave or permit any solid waste receptacle to remain on the curb, parkway, 

street, alley or any other area near any residence after 6:00 a.m. on the day following collection. 

Penalty, see § 10.97 

§ 50.48 FREQUENCY OF COLLECTION. 

Every person occupying or having charge or control of any property within the city shall cause the 

containers or receptacles for solid waste to be emptied and all solid waste material removed from the 

premises and disposed of in a lawful manner. Such removal and disposal shall be accomplished at least 

once each calendar week, except as provided in § 50.50(A). 

Penalty, see § 10.97 

§ 50.49 SIZE OF BRANCHES OF TREES, HEDGES, AND THE LIKE. 

Branches of trees, hedges, and the like, shall be cut in lengths of not over four feet and placed in 

containers or tied in bundles and weigh no more than 75 pounds when placed out for collection. 

Penalty, see § 10.97 

§ 50.50 HEAVY OBJECTS; REMOVAL AND ARRANGEMENTS FOR COLLECTION. 

(A) Every person occupying or having charge or control of any property shall, at least once in each 

calendar month, collect and dispose of all such heavy objects, such as discarded automobile bodies 

and similar heavy or bulky objects, and all materials not included in the term "solid waste" which 

may have accumulated on the premises. However, building or construction waste and debris need be 

removed only upon completion of construction operations. 

(B) Heavy articles will not be picked up at the date and time set forth in Section 50.47, unless previous 

arrangements have been scheduled. Arrangements may be made by every person occupying or 

having charge or control of any property with the holder of a Residential Permit and/or franchised 

Permittee for collecting this material and an extra charge will be assessed depending on the amount 

of time required.  

Penalty, see § 10.97 

§ 50.51 DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE BY FRANCHISEE; METHOD OF DESIGNATING 

THE MEANS OF DISPOSAL OF NON-RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE. 

Franchisee shall dispose of accumulated solid waste by hauling the solid waste to any CalRecycle 

permitted solid waste disposal facility.  In order to fulfill the waste reduction requirements imposed by 

AB 939 and subsequent legislation, the City Council has mandated that any Franchisee(s) for Residential 

and/or Commercial Collection shall meet and maintain a minimum of 50% diversion For 

Residential/Commercial waste and 75% for Construction and Demolition Debris.  Due to this mandate, 

the following standards shall also apply: 

(A) All non-residential solid waste generated in the City of Santa Fe Springs and hauled by Franchisee 

shall meet the mandatory diversion and recycling requirements administered by CalRecycle. 

Franchisee shall demonstrate and achieve a minimum fifty percent (50%) diversion rate for 



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 20 

commercial and residential generated waste, and seventy-five percent (75%) for construction and 

demolition debris generated waste, by implementing a combination of the following procedures, in 

order to ensure adequate diversion rates and the implementation of legislative mandated recycling. 

1) Process waste at a materials recovery facility (MRF) that is permitted by CalRecycle. Such 

facility shall provide diversion documentation identifying the City of Santa Fe Springs as 

the recipient of said diversion. 

2) Establish on-site source separated recycling services pursuant to AB 341 and this Chapter. 

3) Identify and document any quantifiable third-party AB 341 recycling services for each 

generator serviced by Franchisee and this Chapter. 

4) Deliver residual waste, after recyclables have been removed, to a CalRecycle permitted 

transformation facility. Pursuant to SB 1016, jurisdictions can claim no more than 10 

percent of the average calculated per capita generation tonnage (in most cases, years 2003 

through 2006). 

5) Establish on-site organics recycling pursuant to AB 1826 and subsequent legislation. 

(B) Materials hauled by a permitted Recyclable Dealer that contain only source-separated recyclable 

materials, may be taken directly to a CalRecycle permitted recycling facility or permitted transfer 

station. 

Penalty, see § 10.97 

§ 50.52 ILLEGAL TRASH CONTAINERS; BIN IMPOUNDMENT; FEES AND PENALTIES. 

(A) No person other than an authorized Franchisee/Permittee may place a bin or container for the 

collection of any solid waste/recyclable material within the city.   

(B) Any bin or container (“container”) placed in violation of this section is hereby declared to be a 

nuisance and is subject to abatement pursuant to applicable provisions of this code.  Should the city 

become aware of any container which does not belong to any one of the city's established collectors, 

located on private property in the city, the city may cause removal of such container. 

(C) The city shall post a notice in a conspicuous place on any unauthorized container directing it to be 

removed within twenty-four (24) hours and provide the notice, to the generator (business or 

resident), either posted on the container, by hand delivery to occupant or by certified mail. 

(D) The notice pursuant to division (C) shall state that: 

1) The container is illegal and the nature of the violation;  

2) The container must be removed within twenty-four hours of the posting or delivery; 

3) The time the notice was posted or delivered; 

4) The name and phone number of a person designated by the City Manager to hear any 

appeal or challenge to the requirement that the container be removed and that any appeal of 

the order for removal must occur within Twenty-four (24) hours of the posting of the 

notice; 

5) If the container is not removed within twenty-four (24) hours of posting the notice, the city 

will have the bin impounded (to a stated location); 

a) If the city has the bin impounded, the unpermitted collector/hauler and the generator 

(business owner and/or occupant of the property) will be joint and severally liable for 

all fees and fines charged as described below:  

b) In order to recover the costs of disposing of the contents of any such container caused 

to be removed by the city, including both the costs incurred by the collector/hauler 

performing such removal and the city's administrative costs, the city shall charge an 

amount equal to twice the city's maximum authorized daily service rate charged for the 



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 21 

subject size container, plus any disposal charges and storage fees incurred by the 

Permittee; and 

c) If the city impounds or causes the container to be impounded, the owner of the 

container may retrieve such container from the city by providing to the city proof of 

ownership and by paying to the city an impound charge equal to the City’s maximum 

authorized daily service rate for a 10yd roll-off bin, with an additional 20% of total cost 

added on for each additional 10yd (e.g. 20yd bin = 10yd bin cost + 20% (10yd bin 

cost); 30yd bin = 20yd bin + 20% (20yd bin cost; 40yd bin = 30yd bin + 20% (30yd 

bin); and 

d) If any impounded container is not retrieved within ninety (90) days after its removal, 

the container will be deemed abandoned and the city may dispose (by auction or direct 

sale) of such container and is authorized to retain funds collected in disposing of the 

container. 

(E) The Posting of the Notice to remove on the container shall constitute constructive notice to the 

owner of the container and the generator of the requirement to remove the unauthorized container, 

and a copy of the notice shall be provided to the owner of the unauthorized container once said 

owner’s identity is ascertained by city, and if not provided sooner, a copy of the notice shall be 

provided at such time as the owner of the unauthorized container seeks to retrieve any such 

container removed hereunder. 

(F) Between the date following the date upon which any unauthorized container is removed by the city, 

and the date which is five (5) business days following its retrieval from city, the owner of the 

unauthorized container may request a hearing to appeal the city's determination that the container is 

an unauthorized container subject to removal by city as set forth herein. The City Manager or 

his/her designee shall establish a procedure for such a hearing and the method for requesting such a 

hearing shall be included on the notice to remove. If the appeal is granted, any payments due to city 

shall be forgiven and any amounts paid reimbursed. 

  



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 22 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

§ 50.53 BURNING 

No person shall burn any trash, material or rubbish without having first complied with all rules and 

regulations of the city, the County of Los Angeles, the South Coast Air Quality Management District 

(AQMD), and the State of California. 

Penalty, see § 10.97 Statutory reference: Burning garbage and refuse, see Cal. Health and Safety Code 

§§ 49600 to 49602, and § 49620 

§ 50.54 DUMPING ON PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY. 

(A) No person shall throw, place, scatter, deposit, dispose of or dump any solid waste, trash, garbage, 

rubbish, refuse, recyclable material, construction debris, U-Waste, E-Waste, special waste, green 

waste or other objects of any kind or composition upon or below the surface of any public property, 

street or alley or except as may be provided and set apart for such use by the city,.  

(B) No person shall throw, place, scatter, deposit, dispose of or dump any solid waste, trash, garbage, 

rubbish, refuse, recyclable material, construction debris, U-Waste, E-Waste, special waste, green 

waste or other objects of any kind or composition upon or below the surface of any private property, 

private property of another, or into any container or receptacle owned or leased by another, within 

the city.  

Penalty, see § 10.97 

RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL OF CONSTRUCTION, DEMOLITION 

AND RENOVATION DEBRIS 

§ 50.55 WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN REQUIREMENT. 

(A) Covered Projects.  Prior to beginning any construction or demolition activities, the applicant shall 

submit a Waste Management Plan to the WMP Compliance Official and shall be subject to all 

applicable provisions of this Chapter. Failure to comply with any of the terms of this section shall 

subject the project applicant to the full range of enforcement mechanisms set forth in this Chapter. 

(B) Compliance as a condition of approval.  Compliance with the provisions of this Chapter shall be 

listed as a condition of approval on any building or demolition permit issued for a Covered Project. 

Penalty, see § 10.97. 

§ 50.62 SUBMISSION OF WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN. 

(A) WMP forms.  Applicants for building or demolition permits involving any Covered Project shall 

complete and submit a Waste Management Plan ("WMP"), on a city-approved WMP form, as part 

of the application packet for the building or demolition permit. The completed WMP shall indicate 

all of the following:  

(1) The estimated volume or weight of project construction and demolition debris to be generated, 

sorted by type of material; 

(2) The Residential or Commercial Franchisee that the applicant proposes to use to collect and 

receive the material; 

(3) The estimated volume or weight of construction and demolition materials that will be 

landfilled; and 

(4) Any special or specific activities that the applicant will use to comply with the provisions of 

this Chapter. 



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 23 

(B) Deposit: Upon submittal of a Waste Management Plan, the applicant must submit a deposit based 

upon project valuation as established by resolution of the City Council.   

i. Exception to Deposit Submittal: Minor Residential equipment installations or renovations 

with a total project value of less than $10,000.00. To be determined on a case by case basis 

by the City Manager or his/her designee.  

Penalty, see § 10.97. 

§ 50.63 REVIEW OF WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN. 

(A) Approval.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this code, no building or demolition permit shall 

be issued for any Covered Project unless and until the WMP Compliance Official has approved 

applicants WMP. Approval shall not be required, however, where the Building Official determines 

that an emergency demolition is required to protect public health or safety. 

(1) The WMP Compliance Official shall only approve a WMP, if he or she first determines that all 

of the following conditions have been met: 

i. The WMP provides all of the information set forth in § 50.62; and 

ii. The WMP indicates that at least 75% of all construction and demolition debris generated 

by the project will be diverted. 

iii. The deposit has been submitted along with the WMP application. 

(2) If the WMP Compliance Official determines that these conditions have been met, he or she 

shall mark the WMP "Approved," return a copy of the WMP to the applicant and notify the 

Building Official that the WMP has been approved. 

(B) Denial.  If the WMP Compliance Official determines that the WMP is incomplete or fails to 

indicate that at least 75% of all construction and demolition debris generated by the project will be 

reused or recycled, the WMP Compliance Official shall either: 

(1) Return the WMP to the applicant marked "Denied," including a statement of reasons, and so 

notify the Building Official, who shall then immediately stop processing the building or 

demolition permit application; or 

(2) Return the WMP to the applicant marked "Further Information Required." 

Penalty, see § 10.97 

§ 50.64 COMPLIANCE WITH WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN. 

(A) Documentation.  Prior to the completion of any Covered Project, the applicant shall submit to the 

WMP Compliance Official documentation that the diversion requirement has been met. The 

diversion requirement shall be that the applicant has diverted at least 75% of the total construction 

and demolition debris generated by the project via reuse or recycling. This documentation shall 

include all of the following: 

(1) Receipts from the vendor and facility that collected and received each type of material, 

showing its actual weight or volume; 

(2) A copy of the previously approved WMP for the project adding the actual volume or weight of 

each type of material diverted and landfilled; 

(3) Any additional information the applicant believes is relevant to determining his efforts to 

comply in good faith with the approved WMP for the project. 

(B) Weighing of wastes. Applicants shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that, whether diverted or 

landfilled, all construction and demolition debris is measured and recorded, using the most accurate 

method of measurement available. To the extent practical, all construction and demolition debris 



 

March 13, 2019 Chapter 50: Solid Waste & Recycling 24 

shall be weighed by way of certified scales. In instances which, due to small size or other 

considerations, weighing construction and demolition debris is not practical, a volumetric 

measurement shall be used. To convert volumetric measurements to weight, the applicant shall use 

the standardized Conversion Rate approved by the city for this purpose. 

(C) Determination of compliance and release of building permit.  The WMP Compliance Official 

(as appointed by the City Manager or his/her designee) shall review the information submitted 

under this Chapter and determine which of the following standards best describes the extent the 

applicant has complied with the diversion requirement 

(1) Full compliance.  If the WMP Compliance Official determines that the applicant has fully 

complied with the diversion requirement, he or she shall cause the building permit to be 

released to the applicant. 

(2) Good faith effort to comply.  If the WMP Compliance Official determines that the diversion 

requirement has not been achieved, he or she shall determine, on a case-by-case basis, whether 

the applicant has made a good faith effort to comply with the diversion requirement. In making 

this determination, the WMP Compliance Official shall consider: the availability of markets for 

the construction and demolition debris landfilled, the size of the project, and the documented 

efforts of the applicant to divert construction and demolition debris.  If the WMP Compliance 

Official determines that the applicant has made a good faith effort to comply with the diversion 

requirement, he or she shall release the building permit to the applicant. 

(3) Noncompliance.  If the WMP Compliance Official determines that the applicant has not made 

a good faith effort to comply with the diversion requirement, or if the applicant fails to submit 

the documentation required by this Chapter within the required time period, then the WMP 

Compliance Official shall so notify the applicant and the Building Official. The Building 

Official shall not release the building permit until the applicant has complied with this Chapter 

and/or has paid the penalty fees and/or the deposit submitted during application submittal was 

kept and deposited by the City. 

Penalty, see § 10.97. 

§ NON-COMPLIANCE OF WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

(A) Violation of meeting the requirements and/or following a submitted and approved WMP means that 

the WMP applicant shall lose the deposit that was submitted to the Planning/Building Permit during 

permit issuance. 

(B) Additionally, City Manager or his/her designee may choose to prohibit applicant and/or contractor/ 

generator from continuing business and/or doing future business in the City. Violation of this 

Chapter shall also be subject to all fees and penalties identified in this Chapter. 

Penalty, see § 10.97. 

 

 



ITEM NO. 11 

March 14, 2019 

NEW BUSINESS 

Adoption of Resolution No. 9623 - Authorizing the Relinquishment of Child Care and 
Development Services Pre-school Program Contract with the State Department of 
Education for Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 

[RECOMMENDATION 
That the City Council: 

• Approve and adopt Resolution No. 9623 - authorizing the relinquishment of
contract CSPP-8170 with the State Department of Education for the purpose
of dissolving the Child Care and Development Services· Pre-school Age
Children Program for Fiscal Year 2018-2019.

BACKGROUND 

On February 22, 2018 the City Council voted unanimously to subcontract the City's 
child care and development services for preschool age children to Options for 
Learning, a non-profit agency that specializes in operating state funded child 
development programs. The decision to subcontract these services came after much 
thoughtful consideration and analysis by the City Council and key management staff. 
Over the course of two years, staff worked closely with the City Council Child Care 
Sub-committee to address the best way to preserve child care services for the 
community given the City's ongoing financial challenges. Hence, it was determined 
that the best alternative was to subcontract the programs to Options for Learning in 
order to maintain these services in the community. 

Under the terms of the subcontracting agreement, Options for Learning assumed the 
City's contract with the California Department of Education (COE) to administer the 
City's pre-school program as a subcontractor. Options for Learning also agreed to 
assume services of the City's School Age Program located at Lakeview School and 
Los Nietos Child Care Center, which do not receive state funding. The term of the pre
school agreement was for one (1) year ending on June 30, 2019 for both pre-school 
locations - Los Nietos Child Care Center and the Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center 
(GVNC). Under this agreement, the City has maintained administrative oversight and 
auditing authority over the pre-school program to ensure that Options for Learning 
remains in compliance with all COE requirements and all state licensing requirements. 

In addition to the subcontracting agreement of the California State Pre-school Program 
(CSPP), Options for Learning entered into a Lease Agreement with the City on April 
12, 2018 to utilize the City's pre-school classrooms at Los Nietos Child Care Center 
and the GVNC. Per the Lease Agreement, Options for Learning pays the City 
$100/month for use of the City-owned permanent facility, Los Nietos Child Care 
Center. Options for Learning assumed the Lease Agreement between Williams 

Report Submitted By: Maricela Balderas/Ed Ramirez Date of Report: March 7, 2019 
Department of Community Services 



































ITEM NO. 12 

March 14, 2019 

NEW BUSINESS 

Approval Letter of Agreement between the City of Santa Fe Springs and United Way 
of Greater Los Angeles for the Gas Company Utility Assistance and the Edison 
Assistance Fund Programs 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the City Council take the following actions: 

• Approve the Letter of Agreement for the continued participation in the Gas
Assistance Fund and the Edison Assistance Fund Programs with the United
Way of Greater Los Angeles.

• Authorize the Mayor to execute and sign the Letter of Agreement with the
United Way of Greater Los Angeles. ----====--__.---===�

BACKGROUND 

The Family and Human Services Division (FHS) in the Department of Community 
Services has partnered with the United Way of Greater Los Angeles for the Southern 
California Edison and Southern California Gas Company Utility Assistance Fund 
programs to provide utility assistance to underprivileged families in Santa Fe Springs 
and surrounding communities. Southern California Edison (SCE) and Southern 
California Gas Company (SoCal Gas) have been committed to helping local 
customers by providing them financial relief through the Energy Assistance Fund 
(EAF) and the Gas Assistance Fund (GAF). The funds provide an opportunity for 
qualified households to receive up to a $100 payment toward their SCE energy and 
gas bills. Last year alone, the FHS Case Workers assisted 397 SCE and SoCal Gas 
customers who received assistance in the amount of $38,252.25. 

By signing the Letter of Agreement, the City of Santa Fe Springs will continue its status 
as an Authorized Partner Agency with the United Way. As an Authorized Partner 
Agency, we help qualified customers apply for a grant to pay for their residential 
electric/gas service. 

These agreements were originally signed and executed by Maricela Balderas, Director 
of the Department of Community Services; however, due to recent City policy 
changes, the agreement is being presented to City Council for approval and for the 
Mayor's signature. 

The Mayor may call upon Ed Ramirez, Family and Human Services Manager, to 
answer any questions the Council may have regarding this agreement. 

LEGAL REVIEW 

The City Attorney has reviewed the Letter of Agreement between the City of Santa Fe 
Springs and United Way of Greater Los Angeles for the Gas Assistance Fund and the 
Edison Assistance Fund programs. 

Report Submitted By: Maricela Balderas I Ed Ramirez 
Department of Community Services 

Date of Report: March 6, 2019 











NEW BUSINESS 

FY 2018-19 Midyear Budget Review and Modifications 

RECOMMENDATION 

ITEM NO. 13 

March 14, 2019 

That the City Council approve the proposed revenue and expenditure 
( adjustments as detailed in Attachments A through C.

BACKGROUND 

Annually, the midyear budget review process presents an opportunity to adjust 
forecasted revenues, appropriation amounts, and budget assumptions based on 
fiscal year-to-date. actual information and past experience. The fiscal year 2018-19 
budget was originally adopted in June 2018. Due to increasing costs and changing 
economic conditions a one-year budget was adopted. Over the prior four fiscal 
years, two cycles of two-year budgets had been employed. 

Following is more detailed information regarding the estimated revenue and 
expenditure amounts for the City's largest funds, the General and Water Utility 
Funds: 

General Fund 

It is anticipated that the General Fund will end the year with an operating deficit of 
$4,147,700. This is in contrast to the $3,330,000 operating deficit estimated in the 
originally adopted budget, an increase in the deficit of $817,700 (See Attachment A). 
The most significant reason for the change is due to the proposed restoration of the 
annual CIP transfer ($1.8 million addition) and elimination of planned transfers to the 
General Fund from the Employee Benefits and Insurance Stabilization Funds 
($500,000 and $376,800, respectively). Additionally, departmental and non
recurring expenditures are expected to increase by approximately $444,700, of 
which $245,100 was previously approved by the City Council during FY 2018-19 
after the adoption of the budget. These costs are somewhat offset by anticipated 
increases in revenues for the year, primarily based on the passage of Measure Y by 
the voters in November 2018. Measure Y imposes a 1 % transactions and use tax 
and goes into effect April 1, 2019. 

Although not part of the City's operating budget, the receipt of one-time loan 
repayments increases the City available fund balance. The one-time loan 
repayments are anticipated to be $1,400,000 higher than originally budgeted. 
Lastly, the midyear budget proposes to eliminate the planned use of the General 
Fund Economic Contingency Reserve of $530,000. Taken together with the 
anticipated operating deficit, the overall projected increase in the General Fund's 
available fund balance is $52,300. 

Report Submitted By: Travis Hickey and Lana Dich 
Finance & Administrative Services 

Date of Report: March 7, 2019 

















� r,ff, SPH/No.�
(' 

City of Santa Fe Springs 
"'"' � 

ITEM NO. 14 

March 14, 2019 �· \ City Council Meeting 
s: r-;iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 

Traffic Enforcement Officer Detail-Pilot Program Update 

This report is for informational purposes only and does not require any action by the i
RECOMMENDATION 

City Council. 
-----------=-------------====::::!l 

BACKGROUND 
Presentation to the City Council as to the results of the Traffic Enforcement Officer 
Detail - Pilot Program. 

On June 14, 2018, the City Council approved the addition of a Whittier Police Officer 
dedicated to traffic enforcement on overtime as a result of community concerns 
regarding unsafe driving, and the need to assist the sole Traffic Officer assigned to the 
City with traffic complaints and daily calls for service. The "pilot program" began in 
early June of 2018 and ended late February 2019; expending the entire general fund 
appropriation ($50,000). 

Targeted enforcement was generally conducted on a weekly basis for approximately 
20 hours per week. The assignment was intended for traffic enforcement only, unless 
an emergency arose (i.e. lifesaving efforts needed, shooting, officer requests 
emergency assistance, etc.). In addition, enforcement occurred weekdays, both 
mornings and afternoons for a broader impact, and based on traffic collision data, 
complaints from the community, and any additional input from the City Council. 

Report Submitted By: 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Michelle Norwood 
Management Assistant II 

Date of Report: March 6, 2019 



ITEM NO. 15 

March 14 2019 

NEW BUSINESS 
2018 General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress Reports 
City of Santa Fe Springs General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress Report. 

!RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council:

• Authorize staff to forward the 2018 General Plan Housing Element Annual
Progress Report to the California Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD) and the Governor's Office of Planning and Research (OPR).

BACKGROUND 
The purpose of this item is for the Planning Commission to consider the status of the 
General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress Report (APR) for 2018, and the 
progress of its implementation, which needs to be reported to the California Department 
of Housing Community Development (HCD) and the Governor's Office of Planning and 
Research (OPR). Government Code Section 65400 establishes the requirement that 
each city and county prepare an annual report on the status the Housing Element, and 
the actions taken towards completion of the programs and status of the local 
government's compliance with the deadlines in its housing element. 

Except for the Land Use Element of the City's General Plan which was adopted in 1993, 
all other elements (Open Space/Conservation, Safety Element, Circulation Element, 
Noise Element, and Environmental Element) of the General Plan were adopted in 1994. 
Local governments are required to keep their General Plans current and internally 
consistent. There is no specific requirement that a local government update its General 
Plan on any particular timeline, with the exception of the Housing Element, which is 
required to be updated as prescribed by State Law. 

The City of Santa Fe Springs Housing Element 2014-2021 (5th Cycle) was adopted by 
the City Council on January 30, 2014 and certified by HCD on February 18, 2014. The 
Housing Element establishes the City's strategy for meeting community housing needs 
for the period 2013-2021 and is one of seven integral and interrelated elements of the 
General Plan. 

The 2018 Annual Report reflects the City's progress during the fifth year of the Regional 
Housing Need Allocation (RHNA) planning period (January 1, 2014 - October 1, 2021) 
for the 5th cycle Housing Element. The RHNA allocates the amount of housing growth 
each jurisdiction must plan for in their housing element by providing "adequate sites" 
through zoning. So long as a jurisdiction provides sufficient sites and does not impose 
constraints to development, it is not penalized for falling short of its RHNA target. 
However, pursuant to Government Code Section 65863, jurisdictions are required to 

Report Submitted By: W. Morrell, Planning and Development Dept. Date of Report: March 11, 2019 















ITEM NO. 16 
f sp No.rQ City of Santa Fe Springs 

' City Council Meeting March 14, 2019 
£ 

NEW BUSINESS 

Authorize the Purchase of Two (2) 2019 Chevrolet Tahoe's 

RECOMMENDATION That the City Council: 
• Authorize the Director of Purchasing Services to purchase two (2) New 2019

Chevrolet Tahoe's by piggybacking off a cooperative contract through
Sourcewell No.120716-NAF with National Auto Fleet Group; and

• Authorize a purchase order to be issued in the amount of $99,251.47 for this
transaction.

BACKGROUND 

Replacement vehicles are budgeted annually to take the place of those that have 
reached the end of their mileage and/or service-use life cycle. In the FY 2018-19 
Budget the City Council approved the replacement of one (1) Chevrolet Tahoe. The 
current unit 800, a 2015 Chevrolet Tahoe with 94,255 miles will be repurposed for use 
by the Battalion Chiefs as a Staff vehicle for response and recall for incident 
management support. The current Battalion Chief Staff vehicle will be utilized as a 
pool vehicle for administrative staff. 

The City Manager traditionally receives use of a city vehicle; when our current City 
Manager was retained there was not an appropriate vehicle to provide for this 
purpose. The purchase of a second 2019 Chevy Tahoe will accomplish this; as part 
of the mid-year budget adjustments there is a $50,000 appropriation covering the cost 
of this purchase. 

The Director of Purchasing Services requests approval to authorize this purchase by 
"piggybacking" off a cooperative contract through Sourcewell contract No.120716-
NAF from National Auto Fleet Group. The quoted amount includes all taxes, fees, and 
delivery. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The City Council approved $55,000 in the FY 2018-19 Budget for the acquisition of 
the Fire vehicle. There will be up-fit costs for equipment that doesn't transfer over from 
the old vehicle, those costs will be from taken from a separate Council approved 
budget line item of $10,000 for vehicle upgrades. 

The second vehicle will be funded by an appropriation of $50,000 as part of the mid
year budget adjustments. 

Report Submitted By: Paul Martinez 
Finance Department 

Date of Report: March 7, 2019 

























ITEM NO. 17 

March 14, 2019 

Town Center Plaza Improvements - Status Update 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the City Council approve the updated Town Center Plaza Improvements Site 
Plan for Zone 1 (City Hall West Parking Lot). 

BACKGROUND 

At the November 10, 2016 Study Session, the City Council approved the design for 
Town Center Plaza Improvements, Zone 1, City Hall West Parking Lot. The City 
Council's action included the elimination of the public kiosk at the City Hall west 
entrance, and elimination of the relocation of four (4) flag poles adjacent to the 
proposed City Hall monument sign. 

Staff provided a status report to the CIP Subcommittee at their February 13, 2019 
meeting on the Town Center Plaza Improvements. The project plans are approximately 
50% complete, and the project estimated cost is $2.2 million. 

The CIP Subcommittee directed staff to provide the City Council the CIP 
Subcommittee's recommendation to update Zone 1 site plans to include the following: 

• Relocate four (4) flag poles adjacent to the new City monument sign;
• Remove four (4) flag poles currently located in Zone 2;
• Install a public notice kiosk in City Hall west entrance;

The site plans identifying recommended actions are attached, and the estimated costs 
for the above-noted improvements is $62,000, and is summarized below: 

Removal and installation of four (4) flag poles 
Installation of an American flag pole 
Installation of a public notice kiosk 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Total: $ 

34,500 
6,500 

21,000 
62,000 

The final site plans for Town Center Plaza Improvements for Zone 1 will be presented 
to City Council for approval, once they are complete. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The City Council has approved $513,000 for the Town Center Plaza Improvements. 
Staff will request additional funding when the City Council considers awarding a 
contract to construct the improvements. 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPACT 

The Town Center Plaza Improvements will provide improved accessibility to City Hall 
for residents, businesses and other visitors. Also, these improvements will enhance 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete -"7P7J . Date of Report: March 5, 2019 
Director of Public Works 'l · V 




































































	03-14-19  Agenda
	Item No. 5
	Item No. 6
	Item No. 7A
	Item No. 7B
	Item No. 8
	Item No. 9
	Item No. 10
	Item No. 11
	Item No. 12
	Item No. 13
	Item No. 14
	Item No. 15
	Item No. 16
	Item No. 17
	Item No. 18
	Item No. 19
	Item No. 20
	Item No. 28A
	Item No. 28B
	Item No. 29A
	#10 Exhibit A - Ordinance Chapter 50_31319.pdf
	CHAPTER 50
	COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTE, RECYCLABLE MATERIAL AND CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION DEBRIS
	GENERAL PROVISIONS
	50.01 Definitions
	§ 50.20 SOLID WASTE FRANCHISE/RECYCLABLE DEALER PERMIT REQUIRED.
	§ 50.21 PERMIT APPLICATION; CONSIDERATION BY CITY COUNCIL.
	§ 50.22 FEE(S)
	§ 50.23 MANDATORY SERVICE; VIOLATION; FEES AND PENALTIES.
	§ 50.24 REQUIRED COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS, REGULATIONS
	§ 50.25 NUMBER OF PERMITTEES ALLOWED; TYPE OF MATERIAL COLLECTED
	§50.26 COMPLIANCE WITH DIVERSION REQUIREMENTS
	§50.27 COOPERATION WITH CITY
	§50.28 EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS AND PUBLIC AWARENESS PROGRAMS
	§50.29 COST RECOVERY SPECIAL FUND
	§ 50.30 RECYCLABLE DEALERS TONNAGE REPORTS, FEES, PENALTY FOR LATE PAYMENT, AND RECORD RETENTION
	§ 50.31 COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL RATES
	§ 50.32 COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL FRANCHISE QUARTERLY REPORTS, PENALTY FOR LATE PAYMENT, AND RECORD RETENTION
	§ 50.33 DURATION OF RESIDENTIAL AND/OR COMMERCIAL FRANCHISE.
	§ 50.34 DURATION OF RECYCLABLE DEALER PERMIT.
	§ 50.35 TRANSFERABILITY.
	§50.36 SUSPENSION OF PERMIT BY CITY MANAGER
	§ 50.37 REVOCATION.
	§50.38 APPEAL TO CITY COUNCIL.
	MEANS OF COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL

	§ 50.39 RESIDENTIAL FRANCHISE:  FREQUENCY AND ROUTES OF COLLECTION
	§ 50.40 COMMERCIAL FRANCHISE:  FREQUENCY AND ROUTES OF COLLECTION
	§ 50.41 INTERFERENCE WITH THE COLLECTION
	§ 50.42 FLOW CONTROL
	§50.43 MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT; VEHICLES TO HAVE NAME OF COLLECTOR ON SIDES.
	§ 50.44 RECEPTACLES REQUIRED FOR RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY; SPECIFICATIONS.
	§ 50.45 PLACEMENT OF RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL BINS
	§ 50.46 METHOD OF KEEPING CONTENTS FOR COLLECTION.
	§ 50.47 TIME OF PLACING FOR RESIDENTIAL COLLECTION.
	§ 50.48 FREQUENCY OF COLLECTION.
	§ 50.49 SIZE OF BRANCHES OF TREES, HEDGES, AND THE LIKE.
	§ 50.50 HEAVY OBJECTS; REMOVAL AND ARRANGEMENTS FOR COLLECTION.
	§ 50.51 DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE BY FRANCHISEE; METHOD OF DESIGNATING THE MEANS OF DISPOSAL OF NON-RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE.
	§ 50.52 ILLEGAL TRASH CONTAINERS; BIN IMPOUNDMENT; FEES AND PENALTIES.
	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

	§ 50.53 BURNING
	§ 50.54 DUMPING ON PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY.
	RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL OF CONSTRUCTION, DEMOLITION AND RENOVATION DEBRIS

	§ 50.55 WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN REQUIREMENT.
	§ 50.62 SUBMISSION OF WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN.
	§ 50.63 REVIEW OF WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN.
	§ 50.64 COMPLIANCE WITH WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN.
	§ NON-COMPLIANCE OF WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN




